

# DPIRD Animal Ethics Committee (AEC) Submission Guidelines

The following submission guidelines are intended for use by all Department of Primary Industries (DPIRD) researchers submitting proposals to the DPIRD AEC. These guidelines will cover the full process from notification of the Animal Ethics Office (AEO) to the use of Microsoft Dynamics and meeting procedures. These guidelines have been endorsed by the Committee and its Chairperson, as well as the Animal Research Committee (ARC) and its Chair. For clarification on any of the steps involved in these guidelines, please contact the AEO at AnimalEthicsOffice@dpird.wa.gov.au.

# Contents

1.	Preparation	2
1.1	Do I need AEC approval?	2
1.2	Preparing to Submit	2
1.3	Timeline of Approval	3
1.4	Attaining a DPIRD Scientific License	4
2.	Microsoft Dynamics	4
2.1	Creating a new trial	4
2.2	Summary Tab	5
2.3	Purpose Tab	10
2.4	Animals Tab	11
2.5	Animal Welfare Tab	13
2.6	Experimental Design Tab	15
2.7	Critical Limits Tab	16
2.8	Declarations Tab	16
2.9	AWM Tab	17
3.0	Timeline Tab	18
3.1	Related – Documents	18
3.	Submitting Without Access to Dynamics	19
4.	Ready for Submission of Proposal	19
5.	Post-Submission Process	20
ARC	Meeting	20

AEC	Meeting	20
6.	Mid-Trial and Post-Trial Administration	21
Glos	sary	22

# 1. Preparation

## 1.1 Do I need AEC approval?

AECs exist to approve the ethical use of animals for scientific or educational purposes.

If your research trial/demonstration involves the *use* of animals in any way, AEC approval is necessary to protect you and the animals involved in your activity. 'Use' can include but is not limited to:

- Observation of animals (e.g., cameras, baits, tracking, visual observation)
- Animal feed studies
- Animal surgery
- Demonstrating best animal practices to industry
- Education involving animal management to producers
- Animal death as an end point in your research (lethality testing)

Examples of activities that do not require ethical review:

- Plant trials on pastures where animals are present but not being used
- Practical work, work experience and on-the-job training
- Veterinary science done as a part of an animal's clinical care
- Standard operational procedures on farms/sites where research is not occurring

If you are unsure if you need AEC approval for your activity, please email the Animal Ethics Office (<u>AnimalEthicsOffice@dpird.wa.gov.au</u>) for guidance before commencement.

## **1.2 Preparing to Submit**

As soon as the Primary Investigator (PI) is aware that animals will be used in their research trial and therefore AEC approval is necessary, the researcher must notify the Animal Ethics Office (AEO). The AEC meet every 2 months, with the Animal Research Committee (ARC) meeting beforehand on the alternating months. As soon as the researcher notifies the AEO of their intent to submit, the AEO will advise of the next upcoming submission date (these submission dates will also be made available on the DPIRD AEC website so that researchers can prepare ahead of time).

The full process of submission to the ARC, ARC meeting, AEC meeting, and approval takes at least 8 weeks. Therefore, the researcher should be aware of the timeframe they need before commencement of the trial in order to meet submission deadlines. If a submission is prepared in a rush, it is likely not to make it into the correct submission date, thus pushing back approval. A scientific activity involving animal use **cannot commence without AEC** 

**approval**. It is in your best interest to begin the AEC approval process at least 6 weeks before you plan to commence the activity.

Late submissions may at times be accepted depending on the circumstances (animal emergency, concern for welfare) and at the Chairperson's discretion, however it is never guaranteed. Forgetting and losing track of time are not sufficient reasons. If you are ever unsure of the due dates, steps, or relevancy to your project, please contact the AEO so we can assist you through the process.

### **1.3 Timeline of Approval**

#### - 6 weeks

PIs must notify the AEO that they intend to submit a proposal for AEC approval for the next AEC meeting. PIs then either fill out a form or create the trial in Dynamics by the submission date for the ARC.

#### - 5 weeks

Proposal checked by AEO. Some changes may be required to the welfare and statistical sections. Submission due date for the Animal Research Committee (ARC). No more changes to the proposal after this date. The Executive Officer (EO) of the AEO will contact PIs for availability to attend the ARC meeting.

#### - 3 weeks

ARC meeting occurs. The science of the proposal is discussed. PIs attend the meeting and must take notes on the changes required for approval.

#### - 2 weeks

Submission date for AEC meeting. PIs must have made their changes from the ARC by this date and notified the AEO, or they will not be considered for the meeting. No more changes to be made to the proposal.

#### - 2 weeks

EO will contact PIs to arrange attendance at the AEC meeting, and distribute the Teams link and further information. Agenda is circulated to the AEC members.

### 0 weeks - APPROVAL

AEC meeting occurs. PIs do not need to take notes. Within the same week, EO sends changes to be made on their proposals for approval. It is then up to the PI as to when they make these changes and notify the AEO, but they cannot start the trial until they receive final written approval.

## 1.4 Attaining a DPIRD Scientific License

DPIRD staff are automatically covered by DPIRD's scientific license.

**External researchers only:** Once the AEO has been notified, the researcher must reach out to DPIRD's Scientific Licencing Unit (<u>Scientific.Licensing@dpird.wa.gov.au</u>). In this email, the researcher should include the location/s of the activity. The Scientific Licencing Unit (SLU) will arrange a copy of the Scientific License for the researcher. The researcher will then send an email notification to the AEO that this has been attained.

# 2. Microsoft Dynamics

## 2.1 Creating a new trial

Basics of a proposal:

- It **must** be in **plain English**, a strict requirement of the Code. No undefined scientific terms, no undefined agricultural/Government slang. If your proposal contains statements not in plain English, it can be rejected just for this. It will, at the very least, delay your approval.
- Make sure someone unscientific could pick your proposal up and repeat it.
- Fill out every area of Dynamics to the best of your ability. If something is not applicable, note N/A, otherwise it looks like you just missed it.
- If the trial is on Katanning Research Facility, please confirm with the farm management that they approve of your trial taking place there.

Animal Projects II: Teals Hall	2 horn					Q + @ ? 6
6 Diserbat - New	🕐 🖸 Nemanti 👍 Viscourse The Lower 🗇 Error a Lower 🖉 From 🥌 👘	🖬 Kan Deport 😒	Kill Social Temptates -	C Supertin Loop ()		
Open Animal Trials					III Las solares 🖓 Editation	Triter by Imposent
C Narian -	tae t -	Pangal Investigates	- Artual Bart -	Autual Fairth +	Tatal Animatic Liberal -	Gater General C
23-4-09	12-44-65 Convenieuway of the Considered system to requise extension in cards.	William Bullette	21,08,0003	29/02/2014	30	her
25-5-15	25-5-11 - Genetic Restartin Root	Sett Paperoni			10.010	In Program
26-4-10	A long terr comprehence study of attentions and terrs in control of Australia	Parathert Inside			22.965	in Progress
23-3-03	Adding sustainability fram to the Yorking's Son Diseases Table	Sett Reprote			30 0	Tane .
21-5-15	And all papers of wild dogs for research	Thing Souther			1	New
28-5-22	Apartal papering of which design along a train gran	Takey Kraptica	31090.0022	31/10/025	<i>1</i> 0	New
TEST ADD Number 123	Address test actival true	Arrest Decarrie	000,0033	31/63/2413	3,675	line .
25-3-15	Avenuing the potentiality & officies of occupations prompartie to near money.	Mager Bros			់ព	Bare
21:6-39	Worker Partners Call Sciences Project	Tatly Osean			2.000	in Progress
31-5-10	Canas Sectors Forming Systems for the Sector Wheether	Cardien Peris			38	In Progress
21-2-06	Conferences of the potency & selety of the "Bellerical" Hearmanities Contention	Derne Michael	(4/04/2021	14/04/2014	105	in Program
	Continuation of Genetic Researce Flintk Project	Betty Pagaroon			3,000	New.
23-3-62	Command exchange of the sold dog biology frough the Western Australian Su	Tainy Fourtes	38/94/2023	25/06/2026	7,300	Neo
23-3-01	Contraad screekers of the continent agricultural some for held pays and weld in	Name Singles	1/07/2025	35/06/2028	22,000	New
22-3-09	Contracting to national long toris monitoring of labor biological control agents	Taxas Complian			11.520	n Progress
23-5-15	Onating a sonic store or west flowing to derivation to be presidents. The loss Rice as	Tell Departers			P	New
22-3-87 1 - 50:0/78	Ordering the source and should of due presidence in cash-ouse WA	Thart Dever			48300	in Property

In the Dynamics Animal Trials area, click on "New".

These guidelines will address each and every tab, sub-grid and field in Dynamics, and will explain what information should be included in each.

## 2.2 Summary Tab

Animal Ethics Administration Sub-Grid

Animal Ethics Administ	tration			
AEC Number				
Purpose				
Procedure				

- AEC Number: Leave this blank. The AEO will provide your trial with a number and add it in Dynamics for you.
- Purpose: In general, what is the purpose of this trial. Select the closest option from the drop-down menu.
- Procedure: Level of interaction with the animals. Select from the drop-down menu.
  - 1. Observation Involving No or Minor Interference: Animals are not interacted with or, where there is interaction, it would not be expected to compromise the animal's welfare any more than normal handling, feeding, etc. There is no pain or suffering involved.
    - Examples: Observational study only; Breeding or reproductive study with no detriment to the animal; Feeding trial, such as Digestible Energy determination of feed in a balanced diet; Behavioural study with minor environmental manipulation; Teaching of normal, non-invasive husbandry such as handling and grooming
  - 2. Animal Unconscious Without Recovery: Animal is rendered unconscious under controlled circumstances with little or no pain or distress. Any pain is minor and brief and does not require analgesia. Procedures are carried out on the unconscious animal which is then killed without regaining consciousness.
    - Examples: Teaching surgical techniques on live, anaesthetised patients which are not allowed to recover following the procedure
  - 3. *Minor Conscious Intervention*: Animal is subjected to minor procedures which would normally not require anaesthesia or analgesia. Any pain is minor and analgesia usually unnecessary, although some distress may occur as a result of trapping or handling.
    - Examples: Injections, blood sampling in conscious animal; Minor dietary or environmental deprivation or manipulation, such as feeding nutrient-deficient diets for short periods; Trapping and release as used in species impact studies; Trapping and humane euthanasia for collection of specimens; Trapping and humane euthanasia for feral animal control research; Stomach tubing, shearing
  - 4. *Minor Surgery With Recovery*: Animal is rendered unconscious with as little pain or distress as possible. A minor procedure is carried out and the animal allowed to recover. Depending on the procedure, pain may be minor or moderate and post-operative analgesia may be appropriate. Field capture using chemical restraint methods are also included here.
    - Examples: Biopsies; Cannulations; Sedation/anaesthesia for relocation, examination or injections/blood sampling
  - 5. *Minor Physiological Challenge*: Animal remains conscious for some or all of the procedure. There is interference with the animal's physiological or psychological processes. The challenge may cause only a small degree of pain/distress or any pain/distress is quickly and effectively alleviated.

- Examples: Minor infection; Early oncogenesis; Arthritis studies with pain alleviation; Induction of metabolic disease; Prolonged deficient diets; Polyclonal antibody production; Antiserum production
- 6. *Major Surgery With Recovery*: Animal is rendered unconscious with as little pain or distress as possible. A major procedure, such as abdominal or orthopaedic surgery, is carried out and the animal allowed to recover. Postoperative pain is usually considerable and at a level requiring analgesia.
  - Examples: Orthopaedic surgery; Abdominal or thoracic surgery; Transplant surgery
- 7. *Major Physiological Challenge*: Animal remains conscious for some or all of the procedure. There is interference with the animal's physiological or psychological processes. The challenge causes a moderate or large degree of pain/distress which is not quickly or effectively alleviated.
  - Examples: Major infection; Major phenotypic modification; Oncogenesis without pain alleviation; Arthritis studies with no pain alleviation; Uncontrolled metabolic disease; Isolation or environmental deprivation for extended periods
- 8. Death As An Endpoint: This category only applies in those cases where the death of the animal is a planned part of the procedures and animals die but are not euthanased. Where predictive signs of death have been determined and euthanasia is carried out before significant suffering occurs, they may be placed in category 7. Does not include accidental deaths, death by natural causes, and animals euthanased as part of a trial.
  - Examples: Lethality testing.
- 9. Production of Genetically Modified Animals: This category is intended to allow for the variety of procedures which occur during the production of genetically modified (GM) animals. As animals in this category may be subjected to both minor and major physiological challenges and surgical procedures, this category reflects the varied nature of the procedures carried out. It effectively includes ALL animals used in GM production other than the final progeny which are used in a different category of procedure.
  - Examples: Initial breeding animals for GM production; Animals culled as part of the GM production process; Animals culled during the production of animals that are free of unwanted infectious agents or pathogens

If you tick "On KRS", a new field will appear under Administration:

KRS Manager	Look for KRS Manager	Q	

If the current KRS manager is not automatically here, please add them (As of October 2023, Keren Muthsam or Bree Beattie).

#### Estimates and Actuals

Estimates and Actuals			
Animal Usage Start	 Ē	Actual Start	
Animal Usage End		Actual Finish	

Project Start	
Project End	

- Animal Usage Start: When the first animal is selected for the trial.
- Animal Usage End: When the last animal is no longer in the trial.
- Actual Start: When the AEC approved your start.
- Actual End: When the AEC approved your end date (usually 3 years from approved start).
- Project Start: When did this overall project begin development?
- Project End: When will the overall project have results/publications completed?

#### <u>General</u>

General			
Title	*		
Animal Trial Type	Research Activity		
Funding Body			
Related Project			
Principal Investiga	tor		
Objective URL			
On KRS	No No		
Continuation of AEC Research Activity	Yes		
Scientific License Number			
Date of Expiry			
Has the project been significantly revised?			
Conflict of Interest	conflict of interest		
Formal Agreement with DPIRD	1848-1 11 1 -		
Biometric Endorsement Required	No No		

- Title: A succinct description in *layperson's words* of what the trial entails. If you say the title to someone on the street, they should be able to understand it and know what the trial is about.
- Animal Trial Type: Is this a research activity or a demonstration? Anything not a research activity should be labelled as a demonstration. Demonstrations do not require a hypothesis or research aims, as the research has already occurred.
- Funding Body: Search for a funding body, if applicable. For example, Australian Wool Innovation.
- Related Project: What EF or CF DPIRD project does this come under? Search for one in the Dynamics database.
- Principal Investigator: Who is principally responsible for this trial?
- Objective URL: If you are storing information/records from this trial in Objective, please include the link.
- Site Facility Leased: Is this site facility currently being leased? Flick the button to Y/N. If the answer is Yes, please contact the AEO to discuss owner agreements.
- Site Facility Privately Owned: Is this site not owned by DPIRD? Flick the button to Y/N. If Yes, please contact the AEO to discuss owner agreement.
- On KRS: If this trial is on KRS, please flick the button to Yes. If Yes, have you received approval from the KRS farm manager to host the trial on the farm? \*Clicking this to Yes will create a new field called KRS Manager under the Administration subgrid. See <u>here</u>.
- Continuation of AEC Research Activity: PIs who have ever had to make a "Part 2" or "Part B" will from now on need to flick this to Yes in these cases. This will show another field below, "Has the project been significantly revised?".
- Scientific License Number: For externals only. The number of your scientific license if you are not using DPIRD's.
- Date of Expiry: For externals only. The date of expiry of the scientific license.
- Has the project been significantly revised?: Related to "Continuation of AEC research activity". Has the activity gone through revision since the last trial?
- Conflict of Interest: Do you have any actual or potential interest that may affect decision making regarding the wellbeing of the animals involved? Please declare any conflict of interest here. If none, type N/A.
- Formal Agreement with DPIRD: If your trial is in conjunction with another institution (for example, University of Western Australia), or a private producer, it is **legally required** to have a formal agreement. Please contact the AEO for more information.
- Biometric Endorsement Required: Does your trial need biometric endorsement? For research activities, this should be Yes. For demonstrations or other activities, this may be No. Note: if you leave this as No, **Dynamics will not let you save** until you justify why you don't need Biometric endorsement. This field lives under the Experimental Design tab and has a red asterisk next to it, indicating you must complete it.

#### Site Facilities

Site Facilities			
Site Facility #1			
Site Facility #2			
Site Facility #3			
Site Facility #4			
Site Facility #5			

Search for up to five site facilities/general locations in the Dynamics database. You may also add a New Facility when you click in the text box. For help adding a new facility, reach out to the AEO. For trials with more than 5 site facilities, please simply indicate the site facilities in another area (such as Introduction & Background, or in a supplementary Document). Once Dynamics is populated with common locations, we can use them more efficiently.

#### <u>Team</u>

Role Y	Resource ¥	Competencies ~	Signed declaration submitted to 💙
Deputy Principal Investiga	Luke Pilmer		No
External	Jenny Hill		
Co-worker	Miriam Elms		
Deputy Principal Investiga	Bruce Mullan		
Deputy Principal Investiga	Lindsey Woolley		
Deputy Principal Investiga	Ashlea Owczarski-Moss		
Deputy Principal Investiga	Susan Campbell		
Co-Principal Investigator	Ashely Reichstein		
Aquaculture Production C	Adam Sparks		
Deputy Principal Investiga	Ashlea Owczarski-Moss		

Please add each known team member (PI, Deputy PI, co-investigators) in this area. *Role*: refers to the role they will undertake in the trial (investigator, technical officer, etc.)

*Resource*: refers to the person. If someone does not appear here, please reach out to the AEO. They may need to be created.

#### Approvals



Please fill out the relevant staff on the left side; the right side is for AEO use only.

- AWM: Animal Welfare Monitor. Who will be monitoring your trial? If unsure, contact the AEO for options.
- Biometrician: Andrew Van Burgel is currently the approved biometrician for DPIRD research activities. If you will be consulting an external biometrician, please include them here.
- Project Manager: Who is the project manager of the project this trial falls under? This can be the same person as the PI, but please consider your conflicts of interest.
- Livestock Director: The current Director of Livestock (As of August 2023: Julia Smith).
- KRS FRM: If Field Research Services is involved, please include the manager here. If not, please include the KRS farm manager (As of October 2023: Keren Muthsam or Bree Beattie).
- ARC Chair: The current Chairperson of the ARC (As of August 2023: Kelly Hill).
- AEC Chair: The current Chairperson of the AEC (As of August 2023: Bruce Mullan.)

### 2.3 Purpose Tab

• Glossary

Please define any scientific terms you feel you must use in your Introduction. Remember, the trial must be written in Plain English, but if there are scientific terms with no replacement, for example the name of a process like ELISA, please define them here.

• Introduction & Background:

Using simple, laypersons' words, introduce your trial. No undefined scientific words should be included. When using a scientific term or material, please define it simply. This field has a 10,000-character limit currently so should be fairly brief. This field should include:

• Any results from previous related trials.

- Trial's activities and predicted outcomes.
- How will this trial benefit DPIRD/the public/science?
- A description of any existing research.
- Citations for information you provide. Considering the character limit may restrict you, please consider using Vancouver style (numbers intext after the sentence, and a numbered reference list in the References field, in order of appearance)
- Hypothesis:

A hypothesis is a statement that can be scientifically tested. Please try to strike a balance between making this statement scientific and having it be simple to comprehend for the average person. **Not necessary for demonstrations.** 

Example (a null hypothesis): There is no difference in growth and feed efficiency performance of juvenile fish fed the control diet and diets containing proteins derived from fungal biomass.

• Research Aim:

A scientific research aim. A broad statement indicating the general purpose of your trial. **Not necessary for demonstrations.** 

• References:

Any references (peer-reviewed published papers preferred, as the AEC cannot access unpublished documents) that are relevant or quoted in the Introduction & Background. If you have unpublished or difficult to find papers, please attach these in the Document section (discussed later) for the AEC members to read. Even though the Introduction must be written in plain English, this does not mean you can make unreferenced statements.

Consider numbering these for your ease when referencing in the Introduction field.

## 2.4 Animals Tab

• Death as an Endpoint Form Part of Your Research?

Is death as an endpoint (defined <u>here</u> under Procedure) a part of your research? If so, flick this button to Yes and go back to the Procedure field in the Summary tab to make sure it also reflects this.

• Death Endpoint Description (only appears if you select Yes on previous)

What is involved specifically to make it Death as an Endpoint.

*Note*: When creating a new trial in Dynamics, please be aware that *all tables will be hidden*. You will have to Save & Close, then reopen the trial to be able to add information in tables.

<u>Animals</u>

Trial Elegencodeal +	Spatter *	50.*	Noegei **	Tate -	Tearce *	Aristels Movell T., *	Revealedy (December 17	Sasped =	Entreshed Avlensh.*	Arbais Arlends -
	Drange + Battiler	Nale & Fercale	Co-used	3222		1940	fee.	10	41,	40
	Asian Downchar		Re-used				(No.)	No	100	
	2heep - Depertation	Mate	Co-used	3021	Privata Farm	991	.946	760	500	250
	These - Crow B	Male	Co-used	2021	Factor Herste	781	(1944))	200	500	-450

This table is where you need to input information about the numbers and species of animals to be used in the trial. Please add separate entries for each year the trial will be using animals.

- Species: There are many agricultural animals already loaded in the Dynamics database, however you can create a new resource as well.
- Sex: Male and/or female animals?
- Usage:
  - Co-used refers to animals also being used in another trial (for example, at KRS)
  - Re-used refers to animals that were used in a previous trial
  - New refers to animals completely original to this trial
- Year: The year that the animals will be used.
- Source: Where were the animals sourced from?
- Animals Moved to Different Sites: Were the animals relocated to the site of the current trial? Y/N.
- Privately Owned: Are the animals privately owned? Y/N.
- Leased: Are the animals currently leased out? Y/N.
- Animal Usage Justification: Very brief line about why you need to use these specific animals.
- Location: Where will the animals be kept during the trial?

### Animal Relocations

1.242

Maxim 17	Monthley of Antonia -	Location Form v	Locators To ~	Date and New **	Transport -
	607	Northam	02	1/09/2022 12:00 AM	truck
A41.001016	100	Partit	Northan	25/09/2522 5:00 AM	Dite

This table reflects the transport of animals in the trial. This includes transport to the site that the trial is occurring, transport on site, and transport once the trial is completed (for example, to an abattoir).

- Name: This is auto-generated.
- Number of Animals: How many animals were transported?
- Location From: Where did the animals originate?
- Location To: Where did the animals end up?
- Date and Time: On what date and at what time did/will the transport occur? This doesn't have to be exact.
- Transport: The type of transport involved, for example truck, ute, or boat.
- Transport Details: Any extra details of the transport involved.

## 2.5 Animal Welfare Tab

• Objective:

What is the objective of this trial? Why is this objective of greater benefit than the potential harm to the animals?

• Replacement:

Have you considered any alternatives to the use of animals in this trial? Please describe why alternatives to animals are not suitable.

Reduction:

Describe any actions taken to reduce the number of animals used.

Section 1.21 of the Code states: "The number of animals used in a project must be the minimum necessary to achieve the proposed aim(s) and to satisfy good statistical design. The use of too few animals may invalidate the experimental result and result in wastage of animals."

For studies that aim to determine a treatment effect, a power analysis can be a helpful tool to estimate animal numbers if you are able to estimate variation (of the key measurement) from previous research and estimate the expected treatment difference (or size of difference you would like to be able to detect). Andrew van Burgel (DPIRD's biometrician) can be contacted to assist with a power analysis.

• Refinement:

Refinement methods are methods that alleviate or minimise potential pain and distress, and enhance animal wellbeing.

• Describe steps taken:

Please leave this box empty. It is a duplicate area and will be removed.

### Animal Procedures

O law	Histor ~	Frommen Description =	909 or 500 -	Aliandae of Activatic Incolored -	Operation in	Competency 1
Surgical Proc	edune Procedure name			500	arry lociowant	Yes
Surgical Proc	efate Procedure name 2	avaival procedure description		100	Artiste Distances	264
Routine Proc	dus					
Project Speci	ic Procedure		Archital Internetion (Al) of sharp			

The Animal Procedures table is the most important field in this application. Here is where you will describe the exact procedures (routine and specific) that will occur to the animals. These procedures are what the AEC will be considering in terms of animal welfare.

- Type: Select if this is routine husbandry or trial-specific.
- Procedure Name: State what the procedure is called.
- Frequency: How often will this procedure occur to the animals?
- Procedure Description: Describe exactly and briefly what this procedure entails.
- SOP or SWI: If this procedure is a surgical or trial-specific procedure, you need to select the adjacent SOP. If one does not exist in the database, contact the AEO or you may have to find/create your own. Anything that is routine husbandry (e.g., drenching, body condition scoring, weighing) does not require a SOP.

- Number of Animals Involved: Number of animals that will undergo the procedure.
- Operator: Who will carry out this procedure? List all relevant team members.
- Competency: Select whether the staff involved are Yes (competent), No (not competent) or In Training. If one listed team member is in training but the rest are competent, please select In Training. Regardless of what you select here, the AEO will be monitoring competencies and will be in touch if anyone in the team has not submitted up to date competency evidence. It is the responsibility of the PI to make sure that your team members are competent, including any external co-investigators.

#### Expected Deaths

Expects	of Davidha		+ New Eu	echel Deaths 🖞 Refrect 🖉 Have 🖓
0	Protential Cruse of Drath =	Impact on Welfare -	Maps to Minimize largest +	% of Antonia Atlanted ~
	Potential cause of death	impact on wettere	Steps to minimize	100.05
	Antential	impact	riters	100.00

1-242

() + (bgs) -

This table describes any expected deaths throughout the trial. This usually involves expected deaths related to:

- Weather incidents
- Injury in pastures/pens/raceways

PIs are encouraged to look at peer-reviewed information regarding the average percentages of animals affected by these kinds of incidents. If the AEC believes they are unrealistic, this will be conveyed.

- Potential Cause of Death: What might cause an animal die in the course of this trial?
- Impact on Welfare: How will this impact of the welfare of the animal before they die.
- Steps to Minimise Impact: Please follow DPIRD standards of management rather than external farm levels of management for the steps to take. This is to ensure that the level of care is high across all trials. Farmers may use different management processes compared to what is accepted as best practice by Government.

#### Fate of Distressed or Injured Animals

Pate of Distrusted or Injured Animals				+ New Falls of Dublicase. 🖸 Refeate 🖉 How 🛩 1
Registered Welemanian Surgeon Converted 1	Explanatory Note =	Periodustatal Solikare Daid =	Animal Deposet ~	Ram of Assault
		No data evalutive		

Please detail what will happen to animals who are distressed/injured.

- Registered Veterinarian Surgeon Consulted: this should almost always be yes, as a vet should have input into what you do with injured animals. If no, you must provide reasons why it's unnecessary/impractical and be prepared to defend this decision.
- Fate of Animals: What will happen to the animals.
- Notes: Extra information, if necessary.

# 2.6 Experimental Design Tab

### • Experimental Design

Brief overview (in simple words) of how the research activity is designed.

#### • Detailed Methods

Describe in detail all procedures to be performed. Include information about animal disease status and any potential harm/s that may arise including pain, distress and loss of life. Though this section must be detailed enough that others could repeat it exactly, please remind yourself to write it in plain English. Define scientific terms if they are used.

• Originality

Is this a repeat of any previously performed research activity? If yes, briefly describe the previous work and justify why it needs to be repeated. If no, how was this determined?

### • Experimental Justification

Please justify in detail *why* animals must be used for the trial. This may seem similar to previous fields, but you are required to go into more detail explaining the benefits of the outcomes of the trial and how these can justify putting animals at risk/animal use. The AEC wants to see and understand that you have put deep thought into whether animals should be used and why.

• Proposed aims and obtain statistical validity:

Please leave this box empty. It is a duplicate area and will be removed.

#### Measurements and Observations

Moosar	mmunits and Observations			+ New Meallacerve	eca. O tenes - Rev
0	Management a Observation *	Reduction T	3945 H	Negomey =	Reim *
	Free movement of animals (in and put of the system) and games are $\_$	During a visit to the GreenFeed unit	Daily was consentration of COJ, CH4	Measure emissions for -1 minutes, 1	Nethere, CO2, and H2 gas emissions

In this table you will be documenting all measuring procedures.

- Measurement or Observation: Provide details of the measurement/observation that will be captured.
- Application: How will this be measured? Please clarify if all or only a subset of animals will be measured.
- Unit: What is the unit of measurement.
- Frequency: Indicate the maximum number of times an animal will be measured/observed.
- Outcome Related to Project Objectives:

How does this trial meet DPIRD's objectives? Include the projected benefits to DPIRD/industry/people/research.

# 2.7 Critical Limits Tab

		3 Necostarbea O fature ≥ Nec> B for faget > 1
() Petrida -	Crimal Levil =	Actions -
Tead Intglia	Each dairy and beef dow is restricted to a meanman of 1 kg of pellets per day	The GreenFeed springs for calific allows free movement of animals in and out
Physical Upury	individual cattle may accidentally injury thematives by contact with the traffer	The team is expensioned in handling cattle and the selected cattle need to have
Physical Vpury	Multiple primals accessing the laneway to the GreenFeed unit.	The beight of the panels prevent offer cattle from jumping on the extend who.

- Parameter: Intervention point or critical limit, e.g., body condition.
- Critical Limit: Explain the critical limit/parameter.
- Actions: Provide details of the actions that will be taken in the event that the intervention point or critical limit is reached or exceeded.

## 2.8 Declarations Tab

- Inter Institutional Agreement: If you are collaborating with another institution for this activity (e.g., a university), please contact the AEO in case you need to sign an agreement. When the agreement is signed, flick this field to Yes.
- Related Activities: List any related trials/activities.
- 3Rs Acknowledgement: Formally declare that you have considered the 3Rs (Reduction, Replacement, Refinement) in your proposal. You may need to read The Australian Code for the Care and Use of Animals For Scientific Purposes if you do not remember the 3Rs from your animal welfare training.
- Sufficient Funds: Declare that you have consulted the cost centre manager/ external funding body regarding funds for this trial.

### Legislative and Regulatory Controls

- Is this activity subject to any other permit, law or regulation?: Any other permits or licenses required outside of the AEC?
- Does this activity pose health risks to any other animals or staff?: This button should almost always be flicked to Yes. Research activities involving animals will always pose a risk to staff. This field is to make you think and declare that you are aware of the risks.
- Explain the Risk and Precautions Taken: This is in relation to the health risks to any other animals and staff. Very briefly, what are these risks and what is being done.
- Describe Biosecurity Procedures: What steps have been taken to ensure biosecurity is upheld (national, inter-state, or on farm)

#### Threatened Fauna

 Is the target species listed under the Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999?: Visit <u>https://www.dcceew.gov.au/environment/epbc/our-role/what-is-protected</u> to view what species are protected by this Act. If you are submitting to the AEC rather than the WAEC, it is likely your response to this whole section will be **No**.

### **Chemicals**

- Veterinary chemicals used for this activity?: Are you using veterinary-grade chemicals?
- Is chemical efficacy and/or safety being assessed as part of this activity?: Is the trial specifically testing chemicals? (e.g., destroying a pest/plant, attracting a pest for the purpose of destroying it).
- AVPMA Permit: If you are unsure whether you need a permit for the chemical involved, please fill out a self-assessment with PVMA (located here: <u>https://portal.apvma.gov.au/rap/dmprr-ag</u>).
- Veterinary Chemicals Details: Describe in plain terms what the chemicals are (name, basic use).
- Veterinary chemicals used in accordance with all label directions?: Declare you will use chemicals in accordance with labels. If you frequently use chemicals not in accordance with labels and this is standard practice (for example, some aquaculture chemicals), please state this in Veterinary Chemical Details.

### **Other Declarations**

- Previous AEC Number: If this is a related trial to a previous trial, please include the number.
- IP Implications: Are there any issues with intellectual property that might warrant noting?
- GM: Is genetic modification involved in the trial?
- Production of Commercial Products or Services: Please tick this if the trial involves the production of a commercial product.

### 2.9 AWM Tab

• Describe How OSH Issues Have Been Addressed?

What steps are you taking for OSH? You may reference OSH practices and policy in place with DPIRD or another institution, but these documents should be attached in the Documents area if you have them.

### Planned Inspections

Planet impection:				Nam 7	Naveal Supportion 👋 Diver 🗧 🗧
O Des 1	Frequency =	Parpose =	Wignmation To Ba Weekded **	Reprint Rep	Notes Pools -
				Chatenne loves	Open

Please complete this table, even if you are not aware of specific inspection timelines. At the very least, the Animal Welfare Monitor (AWM) should be chosen under Responsibility. If you are unaware of an AWM, please contact the AEO and use their recommended AWM.

Animal Welfare Risks			
Animal Weffare Rinks			🕴 himi Avinut Wellaw R., 👋 Retraiti 🛹 Rine 🛩 🗄
Rich Marry 7 +	Estimated Start Date =	Parent Ingentus Int Manhong Method -	Reportability -
		The data available	
- 1 - 9 of 1			1 - Net 1

This table must be completed, even if you do not foresee any risks. No matter how small it may seem, there is always a risk to animal health. Filling out this table will help the Committee understand what could possibly happen in a worst-case scenario. These risks could include the basics such as animal injury in the races, pastures, or feedlots; stress during handling; disease and illness, etc.

## 3.0 Timeline Tab

This tab depicts the records of emails in relation to the trial. When you email the AEO about your trial, the Executive Officer will record the communications against your trial. This tab is helpful to track what last happened in the approval process. You may also make your own manual notes for your own use.

### 3.1 Related – Documents



When you click on either the ... or Related, you will see an option called Documents. Clicking on this link will take you to the Documents grid so you can attach extra resources.

### Documents grid:

Summary Purpose Animals Animal Welfare Experimental Det	ign Critical Limite Declarat	ione AWM Unexpected Adven	e Events Timeline Trial Tasks	Change Requests Documents	
IE Show that $\rightarrow$ New $\sim$ . If Uphase IB (becomentation	- 19. Opertanatory - D	Addition of Emission	D Retein - Row - 0	Export Documents	
Document Associated Grid 💛					
Concernent on Project and Topy road Project Toper 1					
O Norma =	Modified *	Modified by -	Location **	Rath T =	Scenty -
C 22.5.11 Sharp baalint operations for Exhibits Non-work cample pt	23/03/2023 12:18:4M	Artina Oweranis More	Deconants on Prejects and Tra.	. Showp featilit specifiers for flatters $Prin = \ldots$	SharePort.
ALC Report - 23-3-11 - Since Audits approximation for Balance Pale 4	23/03/2005 12/18 AM	Astina Owerarski More	Occurrents on Projects and Tria	Shiep reaflet operations for Earliers Pele m.	ShaniPort
E Annal onlan monthlyging	23/03/2023 12/18 AM	Ashies Owczanki Moss	Occurrents on Projects and Tria	Sheep feedlot operations for Barbars Pole m.	ShaniPoor
Estimate of properties at 301 along	23/03/2023 12:18 AM	Althia Owczaski Moss	Occurrents on Projects and Tila	Sheep feedfol operations for Batters Pole m.,	ShaniPoint
El SOP 30-8-13 Allegy Antesia Inicia (Approval 12 Aug 2000) doce	23,03,2025 12:18 AM	Ashies Owczanici-Moss	Decoverts on Projects and Tila	Streep feedlot operations for Ramers Role ${\boldsymbol{\mathbf{w}}}$ .	ShavePoort
EDDP a hard result spectrum - 40 capproved lines 2000 (0.001).	21/03/2021 (218 AM	Ashies Owzzanki-Moss	Opcommits on Projects and Tila.	. Sheep feed to transmission for Bassies Pole $\boldsymbol{u}$ .	ShavePoint

Please upload photos, maps, unpublished articles, owner agreements, and any other resources you think the AEC will need to consider your proposal.

# 3. Submitting Without Access to Dynamics

To submit to the DPIRD AEC without access to Microsoft Dynamics, please contact the AEO (<u>AnimalEthicsOffice@dpird.wa.gov.au</u>) or visit the AEC page on the Agric website for a submission template. Once filled out, send this template to the AEO inbox and note which ARC meeting you are submitting for. The Executive Officer of the AEC will input your proposal into Dynamics on your behalf.

# 4. Ready for Submission of Proposal

If you are using Dynamics and have finished your proposal ready for submission, there is a process to submit. There is a red bar at the top of your proposal. You will see your proposal is set to New.

nal ha pro	4	New (< 1 Min)	Avinal timo, i	250		Acres Reserct Correction		Annal	Concernation		11700	)		0
mmary Purpose d	A parent	Adhea for later than on a more	m E×	a Deckation	awn	Unsuperted Adverse Events	Timelow	Triar Teshi	Change Requests	Compretion	Teore	Documents	Related -	
rend Divis Adventual	and the second	- have	Ashkes's test and			Extension and Ac	sin							
		- Number	TEST ALE Numbe											
ADC Number	TEST ALC	< 58) Annovietyerant	No			Animat Usepe	2km	108082	2 <b>.</b>	Actual Start		000,0001		
Pryn(11418/uctor	58	- De 100	100			Asimul Usage	first .	80.07503	18 C	Arrest Freide		11,00,000	i .	- 6
Processos	2 Animal U	(R) Mextpo								Propert Start				1
		Restitue	1001											

If you are ready to submit, click on the New stage, make sure you answer the questions (3Rs Acknowledgment, etc.) and click on Next Stage. This will submit your proposal to the Animal Ethics Office, and notify your elected Biometrician, and the KRS manager if you selected "on KRS".

If you are not submitting to the next immediate ARC meeting, please also email the AEO to advise which round of submissions you will be submitting for.

# 5. Post-Submission Process

After you have submitted your proposal, there will be a submission due date for the ARC which is the first important date of a round.

We will use these dates as an example:

AEC Meeting	Submission Due Date for ARC	ARC Meeting Date	Submission Due Date For AEC	AEC Meeting Date
2024-1	Monday 8 January 2024	Friday 19 January 2024	Monday 29 January 2024	Wednesday 14 February 2024

You will have submitted your proposal before 8<sup>th</sup> January. On 8<sup>th</sup> January, you will be advised by email from the AEO not to make any more changes to your proposal. This is so that the ARC has a chance to review it before the ARC meeting without being confused by extra changes you make. Note: if the AWM or Biometrician request you to make changes in this period, they are exempt from this and you may make their requested changes.

### ARC Meeting

The AEO will reach out to ask for your availability on the ARC meeting date – each proposal gets 40 minutes each. You as the PI are expected to either attend the ARC or nominate a delegate that knows enough about the trial to attend in your place.

One week before the ARC meeting (8<sup>th</sup> January in this example), you will receive an invitation to the Teams meeting, and an email with your proposal in Word format. This meeting invitation includes the agenda which has your timeslot as a reminder, and includes instructions for the meeting.

- If the ARC meeting is running behind or ahead, which it often does, you will be contacted by the Executive Officer via mobile number. If you haven't previously provided your work mobile number to the Office, please do so.
- When you join the Teams link at your timeslot, you will be waiting in the lobby. This is so that you don't accidentally interrupt wrapping up the previous proposal. These discussions are confidential per trial. When the ARC is ready, you will be admitted into the meeting.
- Unlike the AEC meeting where notes will be taken for you, in the ARC you are expected to note your own changes and make these changes in Dynamics within one week of the ARC meeting finishing. Externals are not required to take notes as the Executive Officer will make the advised changes in Dynamics.

One week **after** the ARC meeting (Friday 26<sup>th</sup> January in this example) will be the deadline for ARC changes. Once you have made all changes, please email the AEO to advise. The AEO then lets the ARC Chairperson know, who performs the final check.

### AEC Meeting

You may make changes to your proposal until roughly 10 days after the ARC, when the AEC submission date occurs (Monday 29<sup>th</sup> in this example). Once this date occurs, you may no longer make any changes to your proposal. This includes any Related Documents such as photos, maps, etc. This is not to limit you, but to give the AEC members time to assess each proposal before the meeting. Any information you add past this date may not be included in your final proposal, so if it is urgent please contact the AEO for advice.

Before submission due date, the AEO will be in touch to organise your availability to attend the AEC meeting. As with the ARC, these times are approximate and can be pushed back or pulled forward depending on the level of discussion the members have with the previous proposal. Please try to make your full day available in case your timeslot is moved. If you or a delegate cannot attend, notes will be taken for you.

One week before the AEC meeting, you will receive a Teams invitation to the AEC meeting. You will also receive the updated Word form of your proposal, this time with line numbers which will make it easier when Committee members reference a particular line they want to ask you about. As with the ARC, clicking the Teams link will bring you to the lobby where you will await admission. If timeslots move, you will be advised via text/call.

A couple days after the meeting, you will receive an email from the AEO with instructions for any required changes/information and advice on whether your proposal is approved, approved pending modification, or rejected.

- If your proposal is approved pending modification, you are **not** approved to start your trial until you make these changes and advise the AEO. The AEO will then send back official written approval.
- If you feel the changes requested are not accurate, you may notify the AEO and they will seek further advice from the Committee.

Once you have received written approval of the AEC, you are permitted to start animal use.

# 6. Mid-Trial and Post-Trial Administration

During the course of your trial, there are many things that must be done to uphold the Code:

• If animals are stressed/injured/killed/infected beyond your critical limits, you will need to make an **Unexpected Adverse Event** report within 24 hours of discovery. You do not need permission to treat the animals. Just follow through with standard treatment procedures, and fill out the report template to submit to the AEO:

Unexpected A	Adverse
Event Report	- Octobe

w

• If you **end your trial** earlier than expected, or you come to the end of your trial's approved period, you must fill out this template:



• Every year in December, PIs are notified of **annual reports**. You will be sent this template which must be completed by the following year's Annual Animal Use Report submission date (in March):

W
DPIRD AEC Annual
Animal Use Report for

• You may wish to make an **amendment** to your current proposal, for many reasons. Increasing numbers of animals used, changing the procedures, adding a new team member, adding a new location, etc., may all be reasons to apply for amendment. There are several levels of amendment approval, with major amendments needing to be approved at meetings, and minor amendments being able to be approved by the AEC Executive. You will be advised which one yours constitutes by the AEO when you submit the template. If the amendment is urgent, please advise and it can be expedited.



# Glossary

**Field**: Anywhere in Dynamics in which you can input information, for example a Y/N field, or a free text field.

**Sub-grid**: A 'sub-grid' is each of the rectangular areas under a tab that have a title to them. For example, under the Summary tab, the first sub-grid is Animal Ethics Administration. Notice how it appears as a floating shape against the background.

**Tab**: Within an animal trial, a 'tab' refers to the main navigational areas of the trial. For example, Summary, Purpose, Animals, Animal Welfare, and so on.

**Trial**: Previously called a 'project'. 'Projects' in Dynamics and according to Finance relate only to the overarching externally funded project that activities are coded to. In Dynamics, we create 'trials'. Therefore, in an effort to make vocabulary consistent at DPIRD, research 'projects' will be called 'trials'.

#### **Important Disclaimer**

The Chief Executive Officer of the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development and the State of Western Australia accept no liability whatsoever by reason of negligence or otherwise arising from the use or release of this information or any part of it.

Copyright © State of Western Australia (Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development), 2023.